**FEBRUARY 2025** 

# **Digital Banking**



## **USER GUIDE**

Learn how to use Digital Banking with this handy guide. For questions contact us at **1-866-289-1033** 





## **Table of Contents**

First Time Login	5
Account Recovery	7
Dashboard	10
Layout	10
Organize Dashboard	11
Organize Accounts	13
Account View	15
Messages	
Start a Conversation	16
Close/Delete a Message	17
Accounts	
Account Information	
Transaction Details	
eStatements	
eStatement Enrollment	
eStatement Enrollment Changes	
Alerts	-
Set up Balance and Transaction Alerts	
Set Up Check Alerts	
Set Up Business Activity Alerts	
Edit or Delete a Balance and Transaction Alert	
Transfers	
Submit a Transfer	
Edit or Delete a Transfer	
ACH	
Create a Batch Manually	
Upload a NACHA File	
Edit or Delete a Batch	
Initiate a Batch	
Initiate Multiple Batches	
Uninitiate a Batch	
History	
Wires	
Create a Wire	
Edit or Delete a Wire	
Initiate a Wire	
History	
Positive Pay	
Enter Issued Items Manually	
Create an Issued Items Upload Format	
Upload an Issued Items File	
Work Exception Items	62

## **Table of Contents**

Administration	63
Create a New User	
Editing or Deleting a User	
Unlock a Locked User	
Reset a User's Password	-

## **First Time Login**

## Step 1

Open your enrollment email and click Join.



## Step 2

Create your username and password. Click Create and sign In.

<u> </u>		
CI	eate your account to join RI	
Username		
Username rules		
Password		
Confirm Passv	word	
Show rules		
	Create	

## **Digital Banking User Guide**



## Step 3

Review the information regarding registering for two-factor authentication and click **Get started**. Choose how to receive your two factor authentication codes:

- Voice or text message: Enter your phone number and choose to receive your code via text or phone call. Enter the code you receive.
- Authenticator app: Open your authenticator app and either scan the QR code or enter the code that appears manually. Enter the code that generates on your app.
- FIDO security key: Scan the QR code, insert, or tap your physical key to your device



## Step 4

Click Done and accept the Terms and Conditions.

## **Account Recovery**

Use these steps to reset your password and/or retrieve your username.

## Step 1

Navigate to our website and click Login. Select Forgot Password



## Step 2

Enter your username and email address. IMPORTANT: Email must match what is on file.

Don't know your username or email address? Click **Try another way** to use your social security and account numbers instead.

<
Account recovery We need this info to verify your identity.
Username
Email
Need help?
Next
Can't remember this information? <b>Try another way</b>

Choose to receive your instructions via email or text.



## Step 4

**Email:** Open your email. Your username will appear in the email body. Click **Reset Password** if applicable.

Text: Open your text and click the link.





Enter the code you receive and create a new password.

	R	leset p	assw	ord	
		Login	for User1		
New pas	sword				 
Show rules					
Confirm	password				
		Ur	odate		



## Dashboard

This is your landing page where you can access your accounts, review recent activity, and move money.

### Layout

- 1. Accounts Displays accounts including balance, status, and last four digits of account number.
- 2. Quick Action Buttons Click a button to jump to that feature of online banking
- 3. Transactions Displays recent activity on all accounts
- 4. **Messages -** Displays conversations between you and support representatives as well as alerts and bank messages.
- 5. Remote deposits- Enroll for and view recent mobile deposits
- 6. **Card Management -** Displays debit cards that are linked to your accounts. Select a card to toggle it on or off, report it lost or stolen, or reorder.
- 7. Transfers Displays scheduled transfers and a quick link to Make a Transfer.
- 8. Accept Online Payments- Send an invoice, accept a payment, or sell online

ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY		
🔡 Dashboard	Hi there!	
Messages 0		
C Accounts	Accounts 1	
	Checking         \$0.00         Savings         \$211.69           x1626         Current         x1553         Current	
.头 Remote deposits		
S Payments ~		
📃 Cash Management	inalizită întesaște uvvulienta	
③ Support	Transactions 3 Q ···· Messages 4 巴 ···	
	VERTEX.TRAN# 5         \$2,231.06         Welcome!         May 23,2022           Pending         Feb 26, Savings 22         Welcome to our new digital banking suite. Now you can view all your accoun	
	PULSE EFT ASSOC PULSE +\$203.44 See more Pending Feb 26, Savings	
	FDC STAR SYSTEM DICEVCINTG ACH PROCESSING +\$8.25 Remote deposits 5 ····	
	FDC STAR SYSTEM MNTLY +\$9.90 2	
	JACK HENRY CPS CPSVSAMISC ACH PROCESSING \$19.80 Pending Feb 26, Savings \$19.80 Enroll today	
	See more Card management 6 ····	
	Transfers 7 ····	
	Make a transfer     No available cards	
	Scheduled transfers	
	\$1.00 to Checking On Mar 31, from Savings	
	See more	
	Accept Online Payments 8 ····	
	Send an Invoice     Accept a Payment     Sell Online       that can be paid online     or shares a link to get paid     without building a website       These standard features are included without op-forer or recurring fees	
	Cirganize dashboard	
B My profile	© 2025 Robertson Banking Company • Privacy policy • Member FDIC • 🛱 Equal Housing Lender	?

## **Organize Dashboard**

Use this feature to **add**, **remove**, or **reorder** the cards on the dashboard.

#### Step 1

#### Click Organize Dashboard.



## **Digital Banking User Guide**



#### Step 2

- 1. Click and hold the **6 dot icon** to drag and drop the cards to the order you prefer.
- 2. Click the **X** to remove a card from the dashboard.
- 3. Click + Add a card to browse available cards that may be added to the Dashboard. Select any you'd like to appear and click < when finished.
- 4. Click **Done** once the layout suits your needs.

Accounts			
i :: Transactions	×	:: Messages	×
:: Transfers	<b>2</b> ×	II Remote deposits	×
II Accept Online Payments	×	II Card management	×

### **Organize Accounts**

Use this feature to change the order of your accounts on the dashboard or update how the account information is displayed.

#### Step 1

Click the ellipsis icon next to the Accounts section, then select Organize accounts.



Click and hold the 6 dot icon to drag and drop an account to the order you prefer, then click Save.





### **Account View**

Use this feature to change what account information is displayed on the dashboard.

Click the ellipsis icon next to the Accounts section choose from one the View options:

- **Compact:** Displays accounts in a single row. Only three accounts will appear at a time.
- **Expanded:** Displays accounts in two rows. Up to six accounts will appear at a time.
- **Totals:** Groups accounts together based on type such as Cash, Borrowed, Credit Balance, and Investments. Displays the total balance for all accounts in each group.

	ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY						
09	Dashboard					в	
	Messages	0					
	Accounts		Accounts				
₽	Transfers		Checking x1626	<b>\$0.00</b> Current	Savings x1553	↑↓ Organize accounts	
♪	Remote deposits			<b>COMPACT</b>		View Compact Expanded Totals	
5	Payments	~				🔁 Organize dashboard	
圕	Cash Management		Transfer Message Documents	and a second			
?	Support		Transactions	Q	Messages	〕 …	
			VERTEX-TRAN# 5 Pending Feb 26, Savings 🔁	\$2,231.06	Welcome! Welcome to our new digita	May 23, 2022 al banking suite. Now you can view all your accoun	
			PULSE EFT ASSOC PULSE Pending Feb 26, Savings	+\$203.44		See more	
			FDC STAR SYSTEM DICEVCINTG ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26, Savings	+\$8.25	Remote deposits		
			FDC STAR SYSTEM MNTLY Pending Feb 26, Savings	+\$9.90		بک ا	
			JACK HENRY CPS CPSVSAMISC ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26, Savings	\$19.80	Make remote check deposi	its with your mobile device and track them online. Enroll today	
В	My profile	^		See more			?

## **Digital Banking User Guide**



## Messages

Use this module to start a conversation with the institution, review alerts, and access informational messages from the institution.

## **Start a Conversation**

#### Step 1

Select **Messages** from the navigation pane or navigate to the **Messages** card on the **Dashboard**. Click **Start a conversation**, **Send us a message**, or select the **New conversation** icon.

BA	COBERTSON ANKING COMPANY	Messages		足 Start a conversation	
	Dashboard	Inbox	filter ~		
	Messages	IIIbox	inter *		
<b>D</b> A	Accounts	Welcome! Welcome to our new digit	May 23, 2022 al banking suite. N	Robertson Banking Company	
ד ⊈	Transfers				
ۍ F	Remote deposits			Tory Breanna Allison	
S F	Payments ~			We typically reply within 2 hours	
	Cash Management			We typically respond within 2-4 hours during regular business hours (Mon-Thur, 8am-4:30pm; Fri 8am-Spm CST.)	
	Support			Send us a message	
в	My profile ^		© 2025 Robertson	Banking Company · Privacy policy · Member FDIC · @ Equal Housing Lender	)





Type your message in the field. Click the + to add transaction, account, or payment details to your message. You can also attach images or other files. Click **Send** when done.

ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY	Messages	凰 Start a conversation
<ul> <li>Dashboard</li> <li>Messages</li> </ul>	Inbox filter ~	New conversation Gancel
C Accounts	New conversation         2:58 PM	Robertson Banking Company 🛞 🕀
<ul> <li>Transfers</li> <li>Remote deposits</li> <li>Payments ~</li> <li>Cash Management</li> <li>Support</li> </ul>	Welcome! May 23, 2022 Welcome to our new digital banking suite. N	Robertson Banking Company         Image: Comparison of the second
B My profile ^	© 2025 Robertsor	Banking Company + Privacy policy + Member FDIC + @ Equal Housing Lender

## **Close/Delete a Message**

Select the icon and click Close conversation. Closing a conversation deletes it.

ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY	Messages	몓) Start a conversation
Dashboard		
Messages	Inbox filter ~	Robertson Banking Company
Accounts	Robertson Banking Company 2:58 PM Thank you for contacting us. The next availa	×
	Welcome! May 23, 2022	Robertson Banking Company
.↓ Remote deposits	Welcome to our new digital banking suite. N	
💲 Payments 🗸 🗸		Tory Breanna Allison
📗 Cash Management		We typically reply within 2 hours We typically respond within 2-4 hours during
⑦ Support		regular business hours (Mon-Thur, 8am-4:30pm; Fri 8am-5pm CST.)
		This is the beginning of your conversation history with Robertson Banking Company Wednesday, Feb 26 Hellol Can you help me? Now
A Maria Ch		?
B My profile	© 2025 Robertson	Banking Company 🔸 Privacy policy 🔸 Member FDIC 🔸 🍙 Equal Housing Lender

## **Digital Banking User Guide**



## Accounts

Select Accounts to see a listing of all the accounts tied to your online banking ID.

## **Account Information**

Select an account from the **Accounts** page or from the **Dashboard.** 

- 1. Download into CSV, TXT, OFX, QBO or QFX format, print, or search transaction activity.
- 2. Review recent account activity.
- 3. Quickly access other features for this account.
- 4. Review account details such as account and routing numbers, account owners, and important dates.

ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY	Savings <sup>.,</sup>		\$21	1.69
B Dashboard	x1553			urrent 🛈
☑ Messages	Transactions	1 ⊻ 🛱 Q		द्ध्य
Accounts	台 1 scheduled activity	\$	Transfer Documents eStatements Alert preferences	Settings
	VERTEX-TRAN# 5 Pending Feb 26 전	\$2,231.06	Attach to a conversation	
.↓ Remote deposits	PULSE EFT ASSOC PULSE	2 +\$203.44		
🐒 Payments 🗸 🗸	Pending Feb 26		Details 4	
Cash Management	FDC STAR SYSTEM DICEVCINTG ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26	+\$8.25	Account numbers	
Support	FDC STAR SYSTEM MNTLY Pending Feb 26	+\$9.90	Account number ① Routing number 062201342	
	JACK HENRY CPS CPSVSAMISC ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26	\$19.80	Account information Owner ROBERTSON BANKING CO	
	JACK HENRY CPS CPSVSA Pending Feb 26	+\$1,968.08	Other names on account PASSPORT SETTLEMENT FE	EES
	CHECK#\SERIAL Feb 25 교	<b>\$5,014.18</b> \$272.88	Date opened 7/12/2007	
	CPSVSACHBK Feb 25	<b>\$100.00</b> \$5,287.06	Activity Last statement balance \$0.00	
	CPSVSAMISC Feb 25	<b>\$48.69</b> \$5,387.06	Date of last statement     1/31/2025       Date of last deposit     2/25/2025	
B My profile ^	CPSVSA Feb 25	<b>+\$4,987.13</b> \$5,435.75		



## **Transaction Details**

Select a transaction to view additional information.

- 1. Add a tag to categorize the transaction.
- 2. Add notes to accompany the transaction description.
- 3. Review check images or add an image such as an invoice or receipt.
- 4. Attach the transaction details to a conversation with the institution.

	ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY		Saving	IC ~				\$211.69	
08	Dashboard		x1553		Transaction details	×		Current ①	
	Messages		Transact	CHECK#\SERIAL			B		
	Accounts		🛱 1 sch	\$5,014.18			Documents	Alert Settings	
\$	Transfers		VERTEX-T Pending	Add tags	1				
Ţ	Remote deposits		PULSE EF	Add notes	2				
S	Payments	~	FDC STAF	-	2				
	Cash Management		Pending	Images	3		bers er 🛈		
?	Support		FDC STAF Pending	•			۲.	062201342	
			JACK HEI Pending	Attach to a conversation	4		mation	ROBERTSON BANKING CO	
			JACK HEI	Similar transactions			n account	PASSPORT SETTLEMENT FEES	
			Pending	February 24 February 21		\$5,445.55 \$2,787.68		7/12/2007	
			CHECK Feb 25	February 20		\$2,316.06		//12/2007	
			CPSVSAC	February 19		\$2,391.44		40.00	
			Feb 25			View all	: balance itement	\$0.00 1/31/2025	
			CPSVSAN Feb 25	Robertson Banking Company - Savings CHECK#\SERIAL			posit	2/25/2025	
	My profile	^	CPSVSA Feb 25			+\$4,987.13 \$5,435.75			?

### eStatements

Enroll for eStatements to stop paper documents from being mailed. You will receive an email when your electronic document is available to view. eStatements are available online for 18 months.

#### eStatement Enrollment

#### Step 1

Click eStatements from the Accounts page or the Dashboard.



#### Step 2

- 1. Click Details and choose the account(s) to enroll.
- 2. Confirm your email address
- 3. Accept the disclosure by clicking I Agree

	o receive your statements your account(s) please fo				
	Document Enrollment ocuments for all active ac	counts. Details			
2. Please review th user1@testco.c	e following email address	s. If not correct, ple	ease update it in th	ne space shown.	
3. Please read the	disclosure below. You mu	ist scroll to the bot	tom of the disclos	sure before agreeing to	the terms listed.
3. Please read the		bertson Banking	J Company		the terms listed.
This Electror between you receive state by electronic	Rol	bertson Banking ccount Statemer atement Disclos g Company and cuments for you onic statements,	J Company nt Disclosure ar ure and Agreem provides your ru rr Robertson Ba , notices, and do	nd Agreement nent "Agreement" is i equest and consent nking Company acco pocuments are called	made
This Electror between you receive state by electronic	Rol Electronic Banking Ac ic Banking Account St and Robertson Bankin ments, notices, and do delivery. These electro	bertson Banking ccount Statemer atement Disclos g Company and cuments for you onic statements,	J Company nt Disclosure ar ure and Agreem provides your ru rr Robertson Ba , notices, and do	nd Agreement nent "Agreement" is i equest and consent nking Company acco pocuments are called	nade to bount(s)

Select a document to download and view. You can use the filter to change account, document type, and date range.

	ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY		Documents
	Dashboard		eStatements/Notices Sign Up/Changes Email Settings Disclosures
$\square$	Messages	1	
C	Accounts		Account(s) Document Type Date Range
\$	Transfers		
♪	Remote deposits		🗌 Main Checking 02/19/2025 Statement Statement February 2025 🛃
\$	Payments	~	
Ħ	Cash Management		
?	Support		
В	My profile	^	© 2025 Robertson Banking Company · Privacy policy · Member FDIC · @ Equal Housing Lender

#### eStatement Enrollment Changes

Need to make changes to your eStatement enrollment?

#### Step 1

#### Click eStatements.

	ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY		Savings⊬					\$0.00	▲ 
08	Dashboard		x1553					Current 🛈	
	Messages	0	Transactions	± @ Q ¢	B	B		تې: تې:	
	Accounts		VERTEX-TRAN# 2 Pending Feb 27	\$2,383.22	Documents	eStatements	Alert preferences	Settings	_
4	Transfers		FDC STAR SYSTEM MNTLY	+\$5.87 Attach to a					
Ł	Remote deposits		Pending Feb 27	conversatio	•				
5	Payments	~	JACK HENRY CPS CPSVSA Pending Feb 27	+\$2,191.71 Details					

#### Step 2

Select **Sign Up/Changes.** Choose which accounts to enroll. Click the > to expand each account to choose which documents to receive electronically. Click **Save Settings** when done.

	ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY		Documents	
			eStatements/Notices Sign Up/Changes Email Settings Disclosures	
	Dashboard			
$\square$	Messages	0	Instructions: Below is a list of accounts and document types that are available for enrollment in electronic delivery. You may place a check next to any document you wish to enroll or place a check next to any account(s) in which you wish to	
C	Accounts		enrol all documents. If you uncheck any document or account, you will be unenrolled in dectronic delivery for those applicable documents and/or accounts. No selections will be saved until you select the "Save Settings" button.	
1	Transfers		Enroll All Available Accounts and Document Types Shown	
♪	Remote deposits		Enroll Accounts	
5	Payments	~	> 🗹 Savings	
圕	Cash Management			
?	Support		> 🔽 Checking	
			Save Settings Refresh	

## Alerts

Set up alerts to be notified about your balance or certain transactions.

#### Set up Balance and Transaction Alerts

#### Step 1

Click Alert Preferences and select Balances, transactions, and deposits.

ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY	Savings⊬				\$2	11.69	
Dashboard	x1553					Current 🕡	
Messages	Transactions	± @ Q 兺	B	B		錢	
C Accounts	🗄 1 scheduled activity	≎	Documents	eStatements	Alert preferences	Settings	
	VERTEX-TRAN# 5 Pending Feb 26 5	\$2,231.06 E					
	PIJI SE FET ASSOC PIJI SE	+\$203.44					

#### Step 2

Choose Balance or Transaction and click + Add alert.

<		Account alerts Savings (x1553)	
Balance	Transaction		
You do not l	nave any alerts saved.		
+ Add ale	rt		

Complete the details and select how you'd like to receive the alert. Click Add alert.

<	Account alerts Savings (x1553)
Balance Transaction	
You do not have any alerts saved.	
Notify me when my balance is :	
Notify by:	In-App Message
Cancel Add alert	

#### Set Up Check Alerts

#### Step 1

Click Alert preferences and choose Checks

#### Step 2

Select an alert and choose how to be notified

<	Account alerts Savings (x1553)	
Check accepted		Active >
Check deposited		Active >
Check rejected		Active >

#### Set Up Business Activity Alerts

#### Step 1

Select Cash Management from the navigation pane.

ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY					
🔡 Dashboard		Hi there!		в	
Messages	0				
C Accounts		Accounts			
₽ Transfers		Checking x1626	\$0.00 Savings Current x1553	\$211.69 Current	
→ Remote deposits				Description of the second second	
S Payments	~				
📗 Cash Management		Transfer Message Documents			
⑦ Support		Transactions	Q Messages	毘 …	

#### Step 2

Select Options and then Alerts. Click Edit Event Alerts, Add Item Alert, or Add Personal Alert.

ROBERTS BANKING COMP		Info Exit
교         B           Cash Manager         Statements         Dashboard	* Options	
Personal Account Display Alerts		
		Netteiler Support - (866)-289-1033
Current Event Alerts		Edit Event Alerts

#### Step 3

Check the box next to the desired alert. Click Submit and then Accept once you confirm your email address.

⊃¢ ash Manager Sta	ements Dashboard Options			
Personal Account				
Alerts Listing Eve	ents Item Personal			
				Netteller Support - (866)-289-1033
Edit Event Alerts	<b>1</b>			
Alert Type:	When the following occurs:	Alert Type:	When the following occurs:	
Email	Receiving Incoming Wires		Wire Transfer Update	
🗆 Email	Receiving Incoming ACH Credits		Recurring ACH Batch Failed	
Email	Receiving Incoming ACH Debits		Recurring ACH Batch Expiring	
	Receiving Incoming ACH EDI		Recurring ACH Batch Expired	
🗆 Email	Insufficient Funds (NSF)		ACH Batch Updated	
🗆 Email	Positive Pay Exceptions		ACH Batch Pending Approval	
	Unmatched Recon Items		Upcoming Recurring ACH Batch	
🗆 Email	Statements or Notices		Entitlement Changed	
Email	Maturing Loans		Email Address Change	
Email	Maturing CD's		Mobile Address Change	
Email	ACH Batches Initiated		Company Email Address Change	
🗆 Email	ACH Batches Processed		Company Mobile Address Change	
🗆 Email	Wires Transmitted		Password Changes	
	ACH Batches Uninitiated			

#### Edit or Delete a Balance and Transaction Alert

#### Step 1

From within the account, click Alert Preferences and select Balances, transactions, and deposits.

ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY	Savings		\$211.69
B Dashboard	x1553		Current 💮
✓ Messages	Transactions	± @ Q	2 B B A 🕸
C Accounts	台 1 scheduled activity	\$	Transfer Documents eStatements Alert Settings
Ċ Transfers	VERTEX-TRAN# 5 Pending Feb 26 反	\$2,231.06	Attach to a
. Remote deposits	PULSE EFT ASSOC PULSE	+\$203.44	conversation
Payments 🗸	Pending Feb 26		Details
Cash Management	FDC STAR SYSTEM DICEVCINTG ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26	+\$8.25	Account numbers
) Support	FDC STAR SYSTEM MNTLY Pending Feb 26	+\$9.90	Account number <sup>©</sup> Routing number 062201342

#### Step 2

Toggle between **Balance** and **Transaction** to find the alert to modify or delete. Select **Edit**.

<	Account alerts Savings (x1553)	
Balance	Transaction	
When bala	ance is below \$10,000.00, notify by in-app message.	it
+ Add ale	ert	

#### Step 3

Modify the details or click the trash can icon to delete.

## Transfers

Move money between internal accounts.

## Submit a Transfer

#### Step 1

Click Transfer or Make a Transfer from the Dashboard or the Transfers page.



#### Transfers Transfers 🔾 2 Make a transfer Ħ <>> February 2025 No transfers scheduled. Schedule a future or recurring transfer so you don't have to worry about it later. SUN MON TUES WED THUR FRI SAT 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Select your From and To accounts and enter the amount to transfer.

Click More options to set up a recurring frequency, select a future date, or add a memo if applicable. Click Submit.

	ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY					
	BANKING COMPANY		<	Transfer		
	Dashboard		From			Checking \$0.00
$\square$	Messages	0		t)		30.00
	Accounts		То			Savings \$2,442.75
1	Transfers				Ś	
Ł	Remote deposits		Amount		\$	0.00
S	Payments	~	More options			
≞	Cash Management			Submit		
?	Support		Transfers completed after 6:00	PM may be pro	cessed the next busine	ss day.

## Edit or Delete a Transfer

#### Step 1

Navigate to the **Transfers** card on the **Dashboard** or the **Transfers** page to find the transfer to edit or delete.

Transfers			
Transfers 🔾		Aake a transfer	
MAR         \$1.00 to Checking           31         On Mar 31, from Savings	>	February 2025	< >
		SUN MON TUES WED THUR	FRI SAT
	Transfers	•••	
	Scheduled transfers \$1.00 to Checking On Mar 31, from Savings		
		See more	

Select the transfer and modify details or select the **trash can** icon to delete.

	ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY					
	BANKING COMPANY		ſ	<	Transfer	団
	Dashboard			From		Savings
$\square$	Messages	0				\$2,442.75
٥	Accounts			То		Checking \$0.00
₽	Transfers			A	\$	1.00
♪	Remote deposits			Amount	Ŷ	1.00
\$	Payments	~		Frequency		Once >
▦	Cash Management			Date		March 31 >
?	Support				Save	
				Transfers completed after	6:00 PM may be processed the next l	pusiness day.
В	My profile	^		© 2025 Robertson Banking Company	• Privacy policy • Member FDIC •	

## ACH

## **Create a Batch Manually**

#### Step 1

Select  $\ensuremath{\textbf{ACH}}$  from the navigation pane.

Please note: If you have multiple payment features activated, select the Payments menu first.

Dashboard       Messages       Accounts	Hi there!			
				в
C Accounts				
	Accounts			
	Checking x1626	\$0.00 Current	Savings x1553	<b>\$2,442.75</b> Current
. ▲ Remote deposits				
S Payments	\$ ₽ ₽			
Positive pay	Transfer Message Documents			
ACH	Transactions	Q	Messages	更
Wires	PULSE EFT ASSOC PULSE Pending Feb 26, Savings	+\$203.44	Welcome! Welcome to our new digital banking suite. Now you	May 23, 2022 u can view all your accoun
<ul> <li>Support</li> </ul>	FDC STAR SYSTEM DICEVCINTG ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26, Savings	+\$8.25		See more
	FDC STAR SYSTEM MNTLY Pending Feb 26, Savings	+\$9.90	Remote deposits	
	JACK HENRY CPS CPSVSAMISC ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26, Savings	\$19.80	Ł	
	JACK HENRY CPS CPSVSAFEES ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26, Savings	+\$1,968.08	Make remote check deposits with your mobile de online. Enroll today	evice and track them
B My profile			Erron today	

#### Step 2 Click Create ACH.



Enter the **Batch name** and select the **ACH company** to originate the payment from.

<	Create ACH	
Batch name	ACH name	
Company	Select company	>
	Cancel Create batch	

#### Step 4

Confirm that the correct SEC code, Entry description, and Discretionary data display. Modify if necessary. Click Add recipients.

	Davinall		
	Payroll		
		RBC TEST	>
			>
		PPD	>
		TRANSFER	>
		TRANSFER	>
		Add recipients	>
Cancel	batch		
	Cancel Create	Cancel Create batch	RBC TEST PPD TRANSFER TRANSFER Add recipients Cancel Create batch

## **Digital Banking User Guide**

#### Step 5

Enter the **Recipient name**, the **amount** to pay them, transaction type (**Credit** or **Debit**), and account information.

Click **Optional fields** to enter a recipient ID number or addenda information.

Check **Prenote** to create a zero dollar batch for this transaction. This prenote batch may then be initiated to confirm account details prior to sending the live batch. (optional)

Check Hold to prevent this transaction from processing with the other transactions in the batch. (optional)

Click + Add another recipient to enter another recipient. Click Save recipient when done adding recipients to the batch

Employee One 🧄		団
– Recipient name ––––––	Amount	Credit/Debit
Employee One	\$ 1.00	Credit ~
_ Account number	Routing number	Account type
123456789	123456789 Q	Checking ~
L	FIRST CITIZENS BANK & TRUST	
Optional fields 🐱	Pr	renote 🗌 Hold
Add another recipient		

Click **Create batch**, review the confirmation, then click **Done**.

The batch will appear under the **Active** tab in a **Ready** status.

Please see the Initiate a Batch section for steps on how to send the payment.

ΛCH										
Active Histo	ry	Q	φ¢	A, →		个				
BATCH	RECURRING	G AI	MOUNT	Create AC	ж	Upload AC	ж			
Payroll Ready RBC TEST			<b>\$1.00</b> PPD	Februa	iry 2025					
				SUN	MON	TUE	WED	THUR	FRI	SAT
										1
				2	3	4	5	6	7	8
				9	10	11	12	13	14	15
				16	17	18	19	20	21	22
				23	24	25	26	27	28	

## **Upload a NACHA File**

#### Step 1

Select **ACH** from the navigation pane.

Please note: If you have multiple payment features activated, select the Payments menu first.



#### Step 2 Click Upload ACH.





Browse for your file and click **Upload.** Review your file for proper formatting if you receive an error.

The batch will appear under the **Active** tab in a **Ready** status.

Note: A generic name will be given to an uploaded batch. Select the batch and click **Edit** if you wish to change the name.

Jpload your NACF	A formatted files below to create new A	CH batches.
	P RBC.txt 前 Upload	
Recent uploads		Û

Please see the Initiate a Batch section in this document for steps on how to send the payment.

ACH										
Active	History		☑∻	Create AC	ч	 Upload AC	н			
BATCH		RECURRING	AMOUNT	Oreate At						
0000002 Ready RBC TES	ST		\$0.04 PPD	Februa	ary 2025					< >
				SUN	MON	TUE	WED	THUR	FRI	SAT
										1
				2	3	4	5	6	7	8
				9	10	11	12	13	14	15
				16	17	18	19	20	21	22
				23	24	25	26	27	28	



## Edit or Delete a Batch

**Please note:** Batches in an initiated or processed status cannot be edited or deleted. Please uninitiate the batch first or contact the bank for assistance.

#### Step 1

Select the batch.



#### Step 2

- 1. Select the ellipsis icon to delete the batch.
- 2. Click **Edit** to modify the batch header information.
- 3. Click Recipients to add, delete, or modify the recipient(s) account information or payment amount(s).

e History			A.		1
	Batch details	1	••• ×	H	Upload
0000002 Ready				ıry 2025	
(+) Credits	Debits	2	Edit >	MON	TUE
\$0.04	\$0.00	Z	Edit >		
Recipients		3	4 recipients >	3	4
				10	11
Company	RBC TEST			17	18
Company ID	630177390			24	25
SEC code	PPD			24	2.0
Description	Payment				
Batch restricted (i)	No				

## Initiate a Batch

#### Step 1

Select **ACH** from the navigation pane.

Please note: If you have multiple payment features activated, select the Payments menu first.



#### Step 2

Select the batch in a **Ready** status and click **Review and initiate**.

**Please note:** If dual control is activated, you cannot initiate a batch that you created or edited. A second user will need to complete this step.

ΛСН										
Active History		⊡ ∻	A <sub>→</sub>		♪					
ВАТСН	RECURRING	AMOUNT	Create AC		Upload AC					
Payroll Ready RBC TEST		\$0.04 PPD	February 2025				$\langle \rangle$			
			SUN	MON	TUE	WED	THUR	FRI	SAT	
									1	
			2	3	4	5	6	7	8	
Select the **Offset account** if applicable, recurring **Frequency** if applicable, and the **Effective date**.

Check the Reset amounts to \$0.00 after processing if you'd like to clear out the dollar amounts in the template after processing. (optional)

### Click Initiate.

You may be asked to authenticate.

Payroll		
(+) Credits	<ul> <li>Debits</li> </ul>	
\$0.04	\$0.00	
Show details 🗸		
Offset account		Savings x1553 →
Effective date		Mar 12 >
Reset amounts to \$	0.00 after processing	



Review your confirmation and click Done.

The batch will appear in an **Initiated** status under the **Active** tab.

**Please note:** Batches in an Initiated status may be uninitiated up until our cut off. Please see the **Uninitiate a Batch** section in this document for more information.

The batch will return to a **Ready** status after processing and may be reused, edited, or deleted.

(	$\mathbf{S}$	
Batch	n initiated	
Payroll		
<ul><li>⊕ Credits</li><li>\$0.04</li></ul>	<ul><li>Debits</li><li>\$0.00</li></ul>	
Effective date Mar 12	3	
Confirmation # Recipients	0226250010 5	
	Done	

ACH			
Active	History		~ ↑
BATCH		RECURRING	AMOUNT
Payroll Initiated RBC T	EST		<b>\$0.04</b> PPD

## **Initiate Multiple Batches**

### Step 1

Select **ACH** from the navigation pane.

Please note: If you have multiple payment features activated, select the Payments menu first.



## Step 2

Click the Bulk Action icon and select the batches you want to initiate. Click Initiate.

ACH			
Active	History		₽ ¢
BATCH		RECURRING	AMOUNT
Payroll Ready RBC T	EST		<b>\$0.04</b> PPD
Commission Ready RBC T	EST		<b>\$1.00</b> PPD

ACH		
2 selected: ➢ Initiate		Cancel
ВАТСН	RECURRING	AMOUNT
Payroll Ready RBC TEST		<b>\$0.04</b> PPD
Commission Ready RBC TEST		<b>\$1.00</b> PPD

Enter the **Effective date**, select the **Offset account** if applicable, and check the **Reset to \$0** box if desired for each batch. Click **Initiate**.

You may be asked to enter your password to authenticate.

Review your confirmation and click **Done**. The batches will appear in an Initiated status under the **Active** tab.

Payroll \$0.04	1	
Mar 7	Savings (x1553)	Q Reset to \$0
	<b>A1</b> 00	
Commission	\$1.00	
Commission Mar 12	\$1.00	Q Reset to \$0

## **Uninitiate a Batch**

## Step 1

Select **ACH** from the navigation pane.

Please note: If you have multiple payment features activated, select the Payments menu first.



## Step 2

Select the batch in an Initiated status, click **Uninitiate**, and confirm. The payment will return to a **Ready** status and will not process.

ACH		
Active His	story	~- -
ВАТСН	RECURRING	AMOUNT
Payroll Initiated RBC TEST		<b>\$0.04</b> PPD



## History

Select this tab to review batches that have been processed.

CH		
Activ	e History	~ →
DATE	BATCH	AMOUNT
ост 28	Payroll	\$4.00 PPD
sep 12	Payroll	\$1.00 PPD
SEP 9	9.7.2024 Offset	\$1.00 PPD
SEP 9	9/7/24 Reversal	\$1.00 PPD
SEP 9	PNT-B HEND	\$0.00 PPC

# **Digital Banking User Guide**



# Wires

## Create a Wire

### Step 1

Select Wires from the navigation pane.

Please note: if you have multiple payment features activated, select the Payments menu first.

ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY				
Dashboard	Hi there!			в
☑ Messages 1				
C Accounts	Accounts			
	Checking x1626	\$0.00 Current	Savings         \$2,442.7           x1553         Curre	
.头 Remote deposits				
Payments ^	₽ ₽			
Positive pay	Transfer Message Documents			
ACH	Transactions	۹	Messages 🖳	
Wires	PULSE EFT ASSOC PULSE Pending Feb 26, Savings	+\$203.44	Welcome! May 23, 2022 Welcome to our new digital banking suite. Now you can view all your accoun	
Cash Management Support	FDC STAR SYSTEM DICEVCINTG ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26, Savings	+\$8.25	See more	
	FDC STAR SYSTEM MNTLY Pending Feb 26, Savings	+\$9.90	Remote deposits	
	JACK HENRY CPS CPSVSAMISC ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26, Savings	\$19.80	<u>, 2</u>	
	JACK HENRY CPS CPSVSAFEES ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26, Savings	+\$1,968.08	Make remote check deposits with your mobile device and track them online. Enroll today	
B My profile ^		See more		?

## Step 2

Select Create wire.



Enter a Wire name, choose the account to debit the funds From, and click Add recipient.

<	Create wire		
Wire name		Wire name	0/30
From		Select	account →
То		Add	recipient >
Amount	\$		0.00
Notes		A	dd notes >
	Create wire		

### Step 4

Enter the beneficiary's name, account number, and address in the Recipient account section

<	Recipient		
ecipient account			
Recipient name			
Account number			
Address line 1			
Address line 2			
City	State	Zip	

Click **Find institution** to lookup the beneficiary's financial **Institution name** then click **Save**.

eceiv	ing financial institution	$\ensuremath{\mathbb{Q}}$ Find institution
Routi	ng/ABA number	
Instit	ution name	
City		State
i	We temporarily don't support wires that require an inter institution. To create this type of wire, please use Cash	
	Save	

### Step 6

Enter the amount of the wire and add any notes that should accompany the wire if applicable.

If you anticipate sending this wire again in the future, click **Save** as template to retain the information under the Templates tab.

Please note: if you wish to send a recurring wire, it must be saved as a template first.

### Click Create wire.

<	Create wire		
Wire name		Ver	ndor One
From			Savings x1553 \$211.69
То			or One 123456789
Amount		\$	1.00
Notes			Add notes $\rightarrow$
Save as template (j)			
	Create wire		

Review your confirmation message and click **Done**.

	$\bigcirc$	
	Wire created	
Vendor One \$1.00		
From	Savings x1553	
То	Vendor One	
(i)	Your wire has been created but must still be initiated in the wire details to send it.	
	Done	

### Step 8

Your wire will appear under the **Active** tab in a **Ready** status.

If you saved the wire as a template, it will appear under the Templates tab.

Wires			
Active	History	Templates	
Account Savings x15	53		>
WIRE DETAILS			AMOUNT
Vendor One Pending - no tra	ansmit to FIRST	CITZ RALEIGH	\$1.00

## Edit or Delete a Wire

## Step 1

Select the wire under the Active or Templates tab.

Wires			
Active	History	Templates	
Account Savings x15	553		>
WIRE DETAILS			AMOUNT
Vendor One Pending - no tr	ransmit to FIRST	CITZ RALEIGH	\$1.00

### Step 2

- 1. Click the ellipsis icon to delete the wire
- 2. Click Edit to change the wire name, beneficiary information, amount, or notes.

	Wire details	1	۵ ×	Create	wire
Vendor One	Ready	2	Edit >	nry 2025	
From	Savings			MON	TUE
Recipient details				3	4
Recipient name	Vendor One			10	11
Account number	123456789				
Address	123 joplin, MO 64804			17	18
Receiving institut	on			24	25
Institution name	FIRST CITZ RALEIGH				
Routing number	124084834				
Address	RALEIGH, NC				

## Initiate a Wire

## Step 1

Select **Wires** from the navigation pane.

Please note: If you have multiple payment features activated, select the Payments menu first.



## Step 2

Select the wire from under the Active or Template tab.

Wires			
Active	History	Templates	
Account Savings x1	553		>
WIRE DETAILS			AMOUNT
Vendor One Pending - no t	transmit to FIRST	CITZ RALEIGH	\$1.00

Click Review and initiate.

	Wire details	± ش ×	Create	wire
Vendor One			nry 2025	
From	Savings		MON	TUE
Recipient details			3	4
Recipient name	Vendor One		10	11
Account number	123456789			
Address	123 joplin, MO 64804		17	18
Receiving institut	ion		24	25
Institution name	FIRST CITZ RALEIGH			
Routing number	124084834			
Address	RALEIGH, NC			

### Step 4

Review the wire details. If initiating a template, choose a recurring frequency if applicable. Click **Initiate**. You may be prompted to authenticate by entering your password.

<	Initiate wire
Vendor One	
\$1.00	
From	Savings
То	Vendor One
Repetitive	Single
Show details ~	
	Cancel Initiate

Review your confirmation and click **Done**.

### Step 6

Your wire will appear under the **Active** tab in an Initiated status.

ires								
Active History Templates		W,	Create	wire				
C Account Savings x1553	>	Februa	ary 2025				(-	< >
WIRE DETAILS	AMOUNT	SUN	MON	TUE	WED	THUR	FRI	SAT
Vendor One Initiated to FIRST CITZ RALEIGH (x6789)	\$1.00							1
		2	3	4	5	6	7	8
		9	10	11	12	13	14	15
		16	17	18	19	20	21	22
		23	24	25	26	27	28	

## History

Select this tab to review wires that have been processed.

Active History Templates		₩,	Create	wire				
Account	,	Februa	ary 2025					< ()
13 to FST NAT BANKERS BK (x2333)	\$1.00	SUN	MON	TUE	WED	THUR	FRI	<b>SA</b> 1
		2	3	4	5	6	7	8
		9	10	11	12	13	14	15

# **Positive Pay**

# **Enter Issued Items Manually**

### Step 1

Select **Positive Pay** from the navigation pane.

Please note: If you have multiple payment features activated, select the Payments menu first.

ROBERTSO BANKING COMPAN					
Dashboard					в
⊠ Messages	0				
Accounts		Accounts			
♂ Transfers		Checking x1626	\$0.00 Current	Savings \$2,44 x1553 CL	2.75 urrent
. ▲ Remote deposits					
S Payments	^	<i>₽</i> ₽			
Positive pay		Transfer Message Documents			
ACH		Transactions	Q	Messages 📃	
Wires		PULSE EFT ASSOC PULSE	+\$203.44	Welcome! May 23, 2	
🔟 Cash Management		Pending Feb 26, Savings		Welcome to our new digital banking suite. Now you can view all your accou	un
⑦ Support		FDC STAR SYSTEM DICEVCINTG ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26, Savings	+\$8.25	See more	
		FDC STAR SYSTEM MNTLY Pending Feb 26, Savings	+\$9.90	Remote deposits	
		JACK HENRY CPS CPSVSAMISC ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26, Savings	\$19.80	<u>v</u>	
		JACK HENRY CPS CPSVSAFEES ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26, Savings	+\$1,968.08	Make remote check deposits with your mobile device and track them online.	
B My profile	^			Enroll today	
My prome	~		See more		

Click + Add checks and select Add your checks manually.

	ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY	Positive pay		
08	Dashboard			
$\square$	Messages	Check entries	+ Add checks	
	Accounts		Work check exceptions	
11	Transfers	6	Settings	
⊉	Remote deposits	Your check uploads will display here	Setungs Manage templates	
5	Payments ^			
	Positive pay			
	/	Add checks		
		Add checks		
	E	Add your checks manually	>	
	-2	Add your checks manually	<i>,</i>	

## Step 3

Select the account the checks were written against.

<	Select account	
Select the accou	unt your checks were issued from	
Q Searc	h accounts	
Savings (x155 \$0.00 available		>

Enter the **Check number**, **Check amount**, **Payee**, **Type**, and **Check date**. For check **Type**, select **void** to invalidate a previously entered issued item. Click **Save and enter another** if you have more checks or click **Review** if done.

<	Enter checks Savings x1553		
Check number		1234	4/10
Check amount		\$	1.00
Payee		Vendor One	10/35
Туре		Debit	~
Check date		Febru	ary 27, 2025 🔅
	Save and enter another	Review 1 check	

### Step 5

Review the details you entered and click **Approve** to continue. Click **Approve** to confirm. Review the confirmation and click **Done**.

Account		Savings x1553
Upload summary		
Total items	1	
Total amount	\$1.00	
DATE PAYEE/AMOUNT		CHECK #
FEB <b>\$1.00</b> 27 Vendor One		1234 >

Your check file will appear on the **Positive Pay** dashboard in a **Pending** Status. Click **Review & approve**.

	ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY		Positive pay	
	Dashboard			
$\square$	Messages	0	Check entries	+ Add checks
	Accounts		ArpManualEntry_BannoT0001_250227.txt Savings     Review & approve >     Pending	Work check exceptions
4	Transfers			
€	Remote deposits			Settings
S	Payments	^		Manage templates

### Step 7

Review the details and click **Approve**. Review the confirmation and click **Done**.

	Review checks		
File uplo	ad summary		
File name	ArpManualEntry_BannoT0001_250227.txt		
Total item	s 1		
Total amo	unt \$1.00		
DATE PA	YEE/AMOUNT	CHECK #	•
	31.00 /endor One	0000001234	
4			+
	Cancel Approve		
	If any modifications are needed, cancel this upload and resubmit with corrected issued item(s).		

### Step 8

The issued items file status will now show as **Successful**.



## **Create an Issued Items Upload Format**

### Step 1

Select **Positive Pay** from the navigation pane.

Please note: If you have multiple payment features activated, select the Payments menu first.



### Step 2

Click Manage templates and click the + sign.

Positive pay	
Check entries	+ Add checks
	Work check exceptions
后 Your check uploads will display here	Settings Manage templates





Select the format of your file. **Delimited:** 

- 1. Enter a name for this upload format.
- 2. Choose your amount format, field delimiter and text qualifier.
- 3. Enter the column number from your file into the corresponding field. Leave any columns you're not using blank. **Please note:** Some fields may require additional configuration. Click the arrow to adjust those fields.

Click Review and then Save. Click Done.

<	Create delimited templa	ite	Debit/credit	Debit/credit Col #
Template name	Template	name	Void indicator	Void indicator Col #
Amount format 🛈		No format validation	Void date	Void date Col #
Field delimiter (i) Text qualifier (i)		Comma (,) > None >	Payee address 1	Payee address 1 Col #
Column order Enter which column each lab	bel appears in your file. Leave any colu	mns you're not using blank.	Payee address 2	Payee address 2 Col #
LABEL Item Number Required	COLUMN NUMBER	CONFIGURATION(S)	Payee address 3	Payee address 3 Col #
Item Amount Required	Col #		Payee address 4	Payee address 4 Col #
Account number	Col #		Stop indicator	Stop indicator Col #
Account type	Col #	Set indicators > Required		Cancel



### **Fixed Position:**

- 1. Enter a name for this upload format.
- 2. Choose your amount format.
- 3. Enter where each label starts and ends in your file. For example, if the item number is the first six characters in your file, the beginning number would be 1 and the end would be 6.

Click Review and then Save. Click Done.

<	Create fixed position templa	te
Template name	Template na	me0/50
Amount format 🛈		No format validation >
abel position nter where the label positi ABEL	ion begins and ends in your file. Leave colu BEGIN END	nns you're not using blank. CONFIGURATION(S)
Item Number Required	Begin End	
equired	Begin End	
account number	Begin End	Set indicators >
Issue date	Begin End	Required Set date format > Required
Payee Max 35 characters	Begin End	сылирыя

Your upload template will be listed under the **Manage Templates** page and can be edited or deleted at any time.

Click the + to add more template if necessary.

<	Manage templates	+
Property Management Delimited		>

# Upload an Issued Items File

### Step 1

Select **Positive Pay** from the navigation pane.

Please note: If you have multiple payment features activated, select the Payments menu first.



## Step 2

Click + Add checks.

<b>ROBERTSON</b> BANKING COMPANY		Positive pay	
Dashboard			
Messages	0	Check entries	+ Add checks
C Accounts			🕞 Work check exceptions
		6	
.↓ Remote deposits		Your check uploads will display here	Settings
য় Payments	^		Manage templates
Positive pay			

**Digital Banking User Guide** 

### Step 3

Choose your upload format template.

- 1. Select the account the checks were written against.
- 2. Browse for your issued items file.
- 3. Click Submit.



### Step 4

Your uploaded file will appear on the Positive Pay dashboard in a **Pending** status. Click **Review & approve**.



Review the details and click **Approve**. Review the confirmation and click **Done**.

	Review checks	
File upload summary		
File name arp3.csv		
Total items 3 Total amount \$1.42		
DATE PAYEE/AMOUNT	CHECK	.#
ocr         \$0.25           2024         Vendor 1	00000004	57
oct         \$0.30           28         Vendor 2	00000004	58
OCT         \$0.87           29         Vendor 3	000000043	-
	Cancel Approve	•
	If any modifications are needed, cancel this upload and resubmit with corrected issued item(s).	

## Step 6

The issued items file status will now show Successful.

Check entries	
arp3.csv Savings Successful	Just uploaded
ArpManualEntry_BannoT0001_250227.txt Savings	10 mins ago

## **Work Exception Items**

### Step 1

Select **Positive Pay** from the navigation pane.

Please note: If you have multiple payment features activated, select the Payments menu first.



## Step 2

Click Work check exceptions.

	ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY		Positive pay	
	Dashboard			
	Messages	0	Check entries	+ Add checks
	Accounts		ArpManualEntry_BannoT0001_250227.txt Savings     Review & approve >     Pending	Work check exceptions
t	Transfers			
Ł	Remote deposits			Settings
S	Payments	^		Manage templates

## Step 3

Review your exception(s). Click the check number to see additional details. Check the box to Pay the item or leave the box unchecked to return. Click Submit when done.

_			
<	Work check exceptions		
Acc	ount: Business 002 (x5140)	>	
i	Select any check exceptions you would like to pay.		
PAY	PAYEE/AMOUNT	CHECK #/REASON	
	\$86.56 Pay	<ul> <li>0923653370</li> <li>Not Issued</li> </ul>	
	Returning 0 Paying 1		
	Submit		

# **Digital Banking User Guide**

# Administration

## **Create a New User**

### Step 1

Click your profile and select Business management.



## Step 2

Click + Create user.



# **Digital Banking User Guide**

### Step 3

Enter the user's First name, Last name, Email address, and choose their User role.

- User: can have customized permissions and account access but cannot manage other users.
- Viewer: View only access on specified accounts.
- Admin: can have customized permissions and account access as well as user management.

#### Click Create user.

Please note: You may be asked to authenticate with your password

<	Create user
First name	
	0/24
Last name	
L	0/2
Email	
C User role	0/8
User	~
User	
Viewer	
Admin	
	Create user

Click the **Enable accounts** arrow and choose the account(s) the user should have access to. Click **Enable accounts** to continue.

	User Two Role: User ③ Pending	
Enable ad Jsers mus	ccounts t have access to at least one account.	All accounts >

### Step 5

Review your confirmation and choose from the following options:

1. Click **Send email invite** to send the user a link to set up their login credentials without modifying permissions further.

Please note: Permissions and account access can be modified in the user's profile at a later time if necessary.

- 2. Select Edit permissions to modify entitlements and account access prior to sending the email invite.
- 3. Click **Done** to send the invite and edit permissions at a later time.

$\bigcirc$
Success!
You successfully created an account.
UT User Two
Send User Two an email invitation to accept their account and create credentials.
Send email invite
Edit permissions
Done

# **Digital Banking User Guide**



### Step 6

If Edit permissions was selected:

- 1. Click set permissions to modify global entitlements for the user.
- 2. Toggle on an account to give the user access.
- 3. Select an account to adjust the global permissions at the account level is necessary.
- 4. Select Invite to send the user an email to set up their login credentials.
- 5. Click the arrow to return to the Business Management page.

Please see the Editing or Deleting a User section in this document for more information on permissions

ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY	5 < User management			
🗄 Dashboard	User One			
⊠ Messages 1	User One's account is pending. Inv	vite them to complete set-up of their account.	4 Invite	
Accounts				
		Permissions		
.↓ Remote deposits	U	Set User One's user permissions and adjust account level permissions as needed.		
🛐 Payments 🗸 🗸	User One	Set permissions 1		
🚊 Cash Management		Q Search accounts	- <del>0</del> -	
⑦ Support	Email	ACCOUNT	ACCESS	
	user1@testco.com	Checking XXX1626	2 ● 3	
	Additional services ①	Demand 0002 XXX4236		
	Manage User One's ability to view the additional services enabled by RBC INC.	Dividend Account XXX4376	<b>•••</b>	
	Accept Online Payments		See more	
	Cash Management			
	eStatements			
B My profile	Manage payments			?

The new user will appear as **Pending** on the Business Management page. Their status will change to **Active** once they set up their credentials.

Please note: You can modify permissions, account access, or manage the invite at any time by clicking the user's name.

Settings						
PERSONAL	User management		+ Create user			
Profile	Q user		× ~-~			
Security	NAME	ROLE	STATUS			
🗘 User alerts	U User One	User	() Pending			
User agreement	U User Two	User	() Pending			
BUSINESS MANAGEMENT		USEI	• Fending			
III Profile						
AR User management						
() Activity						
ACCOUNTS						
Robertson Banking Company						

# **Editing or Deleting a User**

## Step 1

Click your profile and select Business management.

ROBERTSON BANKING COMPANY			
Dashboard	Hi there!		
Messages 0	Accounts		
C Accounts	Checking x1626	\$0.00 Current	Savings \$2 x1553
. L. Remote deposits	\$ ₽ ₽		
💲 Payments 🗸 🗸	Transfer Message Documents		
📃 Cash Management	Transactions	Q	Messages D
⑦ Support	VERTEX-TRAN≢ 5 Pending Feb 26, Savings [∞	\$2,231.06	Welcome! May 23, Welcome to our new digital banking suite. Now you can view all your acc
	PULSE EFT ASSOC PULSE	+\$203.44	See more
	Pending Feb 26, Savings	+\$203.44	
	Pending Feb 26, Savings FDC STAR SYSTEM DICEVCINTG ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26, Savings		Remote deposits
Personal settings	FDC STAR SYSTEM DICEVCINTG ACH PROCESSING		Remote deposits
Personal settings     Business management	FDC STAR SYSTEM DICEVCINTG ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26, Savings	3 +\$8.25	Remote deposits এ
	FDC STAR SYSTEM DICEVCINTG ACH PROCESSING Pending Teb 26, Savings FDC STAR SYSTEM MNTLY	3 +\$8.25 +\$9.90	Remote deposits ع Make remote check deposits with your mobile device and track the online.
Business management	FDC STAR SYSTEM DICEVCINTO ACH PROCESSING Pending Fol 26, Savings FDC STAR SYSTEM MNTLY Pending Feb 26, Savings JACK HENRY CPS CPSVSAMISC ACH PROCESSING	3 +\$8.25 +\$9.90	Remote deposits ک Make remote check deposits with your mobile device and track the

## Step 2

Select the user you'd like to edit.

Settings						
PERSONAL	User management		+ Create user			
(A) Profile	Q user		×			
Security	NAME	ROLE	STATUS			
🛕 User alerts	U User One	User	() Pending			
User agreement						
BUSINESS MANAGEMENT	U User Two	User	() Pending			
III Profile						
, ዲዲ User management						
( Activity						
ACCOUNTS						
Robertson Banking Company						

- 1. Select the **ellipsis** icon.
  - a. Click Edit user to change the users name, role, or email address.
  - b. Select Hold account access to temporarily prevent them from logging in.
  - c. Click Send password reset link to email them a link.
  - d. Select **Delete user** to remove their access permanently.

U	🔗 Edit user
User One	(II) Hold account access
(A) User (C) Pending	•••• Send password reset link
Email	Delete user
user1@testco.com	4001 1 (W100100.00111

Click Set permissions to modify global entitlements.
 Please note: Options may vary depending on your company's setup.

Permissions	
Set User One's user permissions and adjust account level permissions as needed.          Set permissions       2	
Set permissions     2       Q     Search accounts	- <del>0</del>

#### a. ACH

- i. Enable: Activates this feature for the user.
- ii. View ACH: Must be enabled to edit any other ACH permission.
- iii. Daily ACH limit: Maximum amount the user can initiate per day.
- iv. Initiate ACH: Allows user to transmit ACH payments to the bank.
- v. Initiate same day ACH: Allows user to transmit same day ACH payments to the bank.

- vi. **Full ACH Control:** Allows a user to initiate an ACH payment that they have created. If this is not activated, the user cannot initiate a payment they created. A second user must initiate it.
- vii. Edit/Delete ACH Control:
  - 1. Full edit/create: Allows the user to edit everything within a payment.
  - 2. **Partial Edit:** User can only change the dollar amount of a transaction, debit or credit indicator, add a prenote, or hold the transaction.
  - 3. None: User cannot Edit an ACH payment.
- viii. Recurring ACH: Allows the user to set a recurring frequency for a payment.
- ix. Upload ACH file: Allows the user to upload a NACHA formatted file.
- x. Restricted batch access: User can view payments that have been flagged as restricted.
- xi. Import recipients: User can import a file containing recipient data to create a payment.
- xii. Batch delete: User can delete an ACH payment.

K User One						
Permissions						
ACH			(j)			
Enable Hide options						
View ACH Must be enabled to edit any other ACH permission.						
Daily ACH limit						
Initiate ACH 🕕		Full ACH control ①				
Initiate same day ACH 🛈						
Edit/Create ACH Control None	~					
Recurring ACH		Import recipients				
Upload ACH file	$\mathbf{O}$	Batch delete	$\mathbf{O}$			
Restricted batch access						

- b. Bill Pay
  - i. Enable: Activates this feature for the user.
- c. Card Management
  - i. Enable: Activates this feature for the user.
- d. Positive Pay
  - i. Enable: Activates this feature for the user.
  - ii. Upload Positive Pay: Allows user to upload an issued items check file to the bank.
  - iii. Work Positive Pay: Allows user to pay or return issued item check exceptions.
  - iv. Download Positive Pay: Not applicable.
  - v. Work ACH Exceptions: User can pay or return ACH exceptions items.
- e. Stop Payments
  - i. Enable: Activates this feature for the user.
  - ii. View Stop Payment: User can only see existing stop payments.

iii. Add stop payment: User can create a stop payment.

Enable		
🖶 Card management		
Enable		
S Positive Pay		Ū
Enable		
Hide options		
Upload Positive Pay	Download Positive Pay	
Work Positive Pay	Work ACH Exceptions	
Stop payments		C
Enable		
Hide options		
View stop payment	Add stop payment	

#### f. Transfers

- i. Enable: Activates this feature for a user.
- ii. Transfer limit: Maximum amount a user can transfer per day.

$\neq$ Transfers	()
Enable Hide options	
Transfer limit\$ 999,999,999.00	
Allow transfers ③	
User management	
Enable	

g. User Management: Allows user to create, modify, and delete other users.

#### h. Wires

- i. Enable: Activates this feature for a user
- ii. Create wire templates: Allows user to set up a wire that can be reused
- iii. Edit wire templates: Allows user to modify reusable wires
- iv. Create one-time wires: Allows user to set up a single use wire
- v. Edit one-time wires: Allows user to modify single use wires
- vi. Per wire limit: Amount the user can transmit per wire
- vii. Transmit wires: Allows user to send wires to the bank for processing

viii. Full wire control: Allows user to transmit wires they have created. If this is deactivated, a

second user will have to transmit the wire.

### Click the **back arrow** once done.

### 3. Toggle on the switch to activate an account for a user.

ACCOUNT	ACCESS
<b>1083686</b> XXX3686	3 • 4
<b>1007890</b> XXX7890	
<b>1009672</b> XXX9672	
	See more

- 4. Select an account to modify the global permissions on a per account basis.
- 5. Click the **back arrow** to return to the Business Management page.

# Unlock a Locked User

## Step 1

Click your profile and select Business management.

BANKING COMPANY				
🗄 Dashboard	Hi there!			в
🖂 Messages 🛛 🌖	Accounts			
C Accounts	Checking x1626	\$0.00 Current	Savings x1553	\$211.69 Current
ک Remote deposits	₽ 型 В			
§ Payments ~	Transfer Message Documents			
Cash Management	Transactions	Q	Messages	∄
③ Support	VERTEX-TRAN# 5 Pending Feb 26, Savings 🕞	\$2,231.06	Welcome! Welcome to our new digital banking suite.	May 23, 2022
	PULSE EFT ASSOC PULSE Pending Feb 26, Savings	+\$203.44		See more
	FDC STAR SYSTEM DICEVCINTG ACH PROCESSING	+\$8.25	Remote deposits	•••
Personal settings		+\$8.25		
	FDC STAR SYSTEM DICEVCINTG ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26, Savings		بې ۲	
Business management	FDC STAR SYSTEM DICEVCINTG ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26, Savings FDC STAR SYSTEM MNTLY	+\$9.90	ی Make remote check deposits with your m online.	nobile device and track them
Business management	FDC STAR SYSTEM DICEVCINTG ACH PROCESSING Pending Foi 26, Savings FDC STAR SYSTEM MNTLY Pending Feb 20, Savings JACK HENRY CPS CPSVSAMISC ACH PROCESSING	+\$9.90	لی Make remote check deposits with your m	nobile device and track them

### Step 2

Select the locked user.

Settings					
PERSONAL	User management		+ Create user		
(A) Profile	Q user		×		
Security	NAME	ROLE	STATUS		
<ul><li>User alerts</li><li>User agreement</li></ul>	User One user1	User	🔂 Locked		
BUSINESS MANAGEMENT	U User Two	User	() Pending		
,ጻዒ User management					
( Activity					



Click **Unlock** and review the confirmation.

**Please note:** You can email the user a link to reset their password if they continue to have trouble. Otherwise, click **I'm Done**.



## **Reset a User's Password**

## Step 1

Click your profile and select Business management.

ROBERT	SON				
🛛 🖁 Dashboard		Hi there!			В
Messages	0	Accounts			
C Accounts		Checking x1626	\$0.00 Current	Savings x1553	\$211.69 Current
₽ Transfers					
کي Remote depos	sits	<i>₽</i> 🖳 🗅			
S Payments	~	Transfer Message Documents			
📃 Cash Manager	ment	Transactions	Q	Messages	⊉
⑦ Support		VERTEX-TRAN# 5 Pending Feb 26, Savings 2	\$2,231.06	Welcome! Welcome to our new digital banking suite. Now s	May 23, 2022
		PULSE EFT ASSOC PULSE Pending Feb 26, Savings	+\$203.44		See more
		FDC STAR SYSTEM DICEVCINTG ACH PROCESSING Pending Fob 26, Savings	G +\$8.25	Remote deposits	
Personal setting	ings	FDC STAR SYSTEM MNTLY	+\$9.90	<u>ۍ</u>	
🚊 🛛 Business man	nagement	Pending Fob 26, Savings		ی Make remote check deposits with your mobile	device and track them
💥 Account settin	ngs	JACK HENRY CPS CPSVSAMISC ACH PROCESSING Pending Feb 26, Savings	G \$19.80	online. Enroll today	
← Sign out					
B My profile	~		See more	Accept Online Payments	

### Step 2

Select the user to reset.

Settings						
PERSONAL	User management		+ Create user			
Profile	Q user		⊗ ∽			
Security	NAME	ROLE	STATUS			
🚊 User alerts	U User One	User	() Pending			
User agreement						
BUSINESS MANAGEMENT	U User Two	User	() Pending			
III Profile						
Aୟ User management						
() Activity						
ACCOUNTS						
R Robertson Banking Company						

Click the ellipsis icon and choose Send password reset link to email the user.

